1	DURHAM-CHAPEL HILL-CARRBORO METROPOLITAN P	LANNING ORGANIZATION BOARD
2	9 August 2017	
3		
4	MINUTES OF MEETIN	G
5		
6	The Durham-Chapel Hill-Carrboro Metropolitan Plannir	g Organization Board met on August 9,
7	2017, at 9:00 a.m. in the City Council Committee Room	, located on the second floor of
8	Durham City Hall. The following people were in attenda	ance:
9		
10	Steve Schewel (MPO Board Chair)	City of Durham
11	Damon Seils (MPO Board Vice Chair)	Town of Carrboro
12	Karen Howard (Member)	Chatham County
13	Don Moffitt (Member)	City of Durham
14	Ellen Reckhow (Member)	Durham County
15	Ed Harrison (Member)	GoTriangle
16	Pam Hemminger (Member)	Town of Chapel Hill
17	Michael Parker (Alternate)	Town of Chapel Hill
18	Penny Rich (Alternate)	Orange County
19	Jenn Weaver (Alternate)	Town of Hillsborough
20		
21	David Keilson	NCDOT, Division 5
22	Richard Hancock	NCDOT, Division 5
23	Patrick Wilson	NCDOT, Division 7
24	Jen Britt	NCDOT, Division 8
25	Julie Bogle	NCDOT, TPB
26	Craig Benedict	Orange County
27	Bergen Watterson	Town of Chapel Hill
28	Tina Moon	Town of Carrboro
29	Kayla Seibel	Town of Chapel Hill
30	John Hodges-Copple	Triangle J Council of Governments
31	Patrick McDonough	GoTriangle
32	Geoff Green	GoTriangle
33	Danny Rogers	GoTriangle
34	Terry Bellamy	City of Durham
35	Bill Judge	City of Durham
36	Bryan Poole	City of Durham
37	Ellen Beckmann	City of Durham
38	Mohammed Islam	City of Durham
39	Eddie Dancausse	Federal Highway Administration
40	Felix Nwoko	DCHC MPO
41	Andy Henry	DCHC MPO
42	Aaron Cain	DCHC MPO
43	Dale McKeel	DCHC MPO/City of Durham
44	Brian Rhodes	DCHC MPO
45	Anne Phillips	
46	James H. Dunlop	NCDOT

47 48

49

Quorum Count: 9 of 10 Voting Members

50 Chair Steve Schewel called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. A roll call was performed.

51 The voting members and alternate voting members of the DCHC MPO Board were identified

and are indicated above. Chair Steve Schewel reminded everyone to sign-in using the sign-in

- 53 sheet that was being circulated.
- 54

PRELIMINARIES:

55 **<u>2. Ethics Reminder</u>**

56 Chair Steve Schewel read the Ethics Reminder and asked if there were any known

57 conflicts of interest with respect to matters coming before the MPO Board and requested that if

- there were any identified during the meeting for them to be announced. There were no known
- 59 conflicts identified by MPO Board members.

60 3. Adjustments to the Agenda

61 There were no adjustments to the agenda.

62 <u>4. Public Comments</u>

- 63 Chair Steve Schewel asked if there were any members of the public signed up to
- speak. There were no members of the public signed up to speak during the meeting.

65 **<u>5. Directives to Staff</u>**

- 66 The Directives to Staff were included in the agenda packet for review.
- 67

CONSENT AGENDA:

68 6. Approval of June 14, 2017 Meeting Minutes

69 7. Authorize Durham City Manager on behalf of DCHC MPO to enter into agreement with

70 North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) for the Metropolitan Planning

- 71 Program Grant (Section 5303) for FY18
- 72 Meg Scully, LPA Staff

73 8. FFY17 Section 5307/5340 FULL Apportionment Split Letter

74 Meg Scully, LPA Staff

- Pam Hemminger made a motion to approve the items on the Consent Agenda. Karen
 Howard seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.
- 77

ACTION ITEMS:

78 9. Superstreets in North Carolina

James H. Dunlop, P.E., North Carolina Department of Transportation

James Dunlop provided other names and a definition of superstreets. He also described 80 81 some of the benefits of superstreets, such as the ability to reduce crashes and delays. James Dunlop explained why superstreets are effective at reducing crashes and described the results 82 of a superstreet crash reduction study. James Dunlop and Chair Steve Schewel discussed why 83 Ohio was an outlier in the crash reduction study. Don Moffitt and James Dunlop discussed why 84 85 the severity of crashes may increase with the implementation of superstreets. James Dunlop 86 defined the four types of crashes (A, B, C, and fatal) in response to Michael Parker's request for a definition of Class B crashes. James Dunlop stated that crashes may involve two vehicles, a 87 88 vehicle running off the road, or a vehicle and a pedestrian in response to an inquiry from Penny 89 Rich. James Dunlop explained how superstreets recapture the capacity that is lost by installing traffic signals on a corridor using US 15-501 at Mt. Moriah Road and the US 15-501 90 Erwin/Europa intersection as examples. There was discussion of some of the unintended 91 92 consequences of superstreets, and whether school buses, which generally do not turn right on 93 red, were factored into decisions about superstreets. Michael Parker and James Dunlop discussed whether superstreets are appropriate for intersections with four approximately equal 94 flows of traffic. 95

James Dunlop discussed the improved travel and wait times that were a result of converting the Erwin/Europa intersection into a superstreet. James Dunlop explained the role that the signal cycle plays in increasing wait times for people going across, not through, the Erwin/Europa intersection in response to a question from Pam Hemminger. There was discussion of whether the US 15-501 study has received funding.

101 Michael Parker and James Dunlop discussed whether it makes sense to implement a 102 superstreet at one intersection versus a series of intersections. There was continued discussion of whether the superstreet at the Erwin/Europa intersection has improved conditions there. 103 104 There was discussion of a potential project on Sage Road. There was discussion of the portion of US 15-501 that will be studied and whether the corridor study will consider development 105 associated with the Durham-Orange Light Rail Transit (D-O LRT). Don Moffitt commented on 106 107 the air quality benefit that superstreets provide by allowing cars to spend less wait time on the road. 108

109 James Dunlop discussed other examples of superstreets, the effect that superstreets have on nearby businesses, and how superstreets can accommodate pedestrians by 110 implementing staged crossings. There was continued discussion of conditions necessary for 111 112 staged crossings, and pedestrian behavior at Mt. Moriah and US 15-501. James Dunlop 113 discussed the development of the pedestrian crossing at the Erwin/Europa intersection. Penny Rich and James Dunlop discussed pedestrian signage at the Erwin/Europa intersection. James 114 Dunlop shared an example of a mid-block crossing in Michigan, and possible treatments to 115 accommodate bicyclists on superstreets. There was discussion of the current bicycle and 116 117 pedestrian conditions at the Erwin/Europa intersection. James Dunlop explained how signal timing can be used to control vehicular speed on superstreets. James Dunlop discussed other 118 options available for superstreets and reiterated the benefits associated with superstreets. 119 120 James Dunlop confirmed that superstreets would work well with driverless cars in response to 121 an inquiry from Pam Hemminger. James Dunlop and Mohammed Islam discussed the relationship between traffic signals and U-Turns on superstreets. 122

Ellen Beckmann stated that a reverse superstreet has been proposed for Roxboro Road and Latta/Infinity Road and that there would be a public meeting to discuss the proposal in the fall. James Dunlop defined a reverse superstreet. Ellen Beckmann stated that there may be a

MPO Board presentation about the reverse superstreet on Roxboro Road and Latta/InfinityRoad.

128 This item was informational and no further action was required by the MPO Board.

129 **<u>10. Durham-Orange Light Rail Transit Entrance into Engineering Phase</u></u>**

130 Danny Rogers, GoTriangle

Danny Rogers stated that on July 28, 2017, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) approved GoTriangle's request to enter the New Starts Engineering phase of the FTA's Capital Investment Grants (CIG) program for the D-O LRT project.

134 Chair Steve Schewel stated that members of the public wishing to speak would be able135 to do so after Danny Rogers' presentation.

Danny Rogers explained the implications of the FTA's decision, and stated that the 136 project is now moving from 30% to 100% design. He shared the next steps for the project and 137 the local commitment of funding needed for the project to progress. Danny Rogers stated that 138 139 the required percentage of the local commitment is currently available and would only require 140 adjusting the language of the financial plan. Danny Rogers stated that the D-O LRT project would be submitted through the Strategic Prioritization Office of Transportation (SPOT) process 141 in order to come up with the state funding for the project. He added that the Staff Working 142 Groups (SWGs) would be delivering quarterly progress reports on the D-O LRT project and the 143 144 County Transit Plans. Danny Rogers discussed the procedure for making adjustments to the project moving forward to ensure the appropriate level of oversight. Danny Rogers discussed 145 possible changes to the project, primarily the Gateway Station location adjustment, shifting the 146 location of the Patterson Place Station location, the University Drive alignment, and the possible 147 addition of a Blackwell Street/Mangum Street station to serve the Durham Performing Arts 148 Center (DPAC) and the Durham Bulls' stadium. He added that these adjustments would be 149 taken to the public for their feedback. Chair Steve Schewel and Danny Rogers discussed the 150

potential cost of adding a new station. Chair Steve Schewel asked whether any members of the
 public wished to speak. No members of the public wished to speak.

Pam Hemminger commented on the usefulness of Susan Shruth's recent presentation 153 154 on the progress of the D-O LRT. Danny Rogers and Ellen Reckhow discussed the rating of the 155 D-O LRT in relation to other New Starts projects, and the reason that the D-O LRT was rated medium-low on the revenue piece of the plan. Danny Rogers discussed steps that were taken to 156 ensure the accuracy of the revenue projections. Chair Steve Schewel passed around an excerpt 157 from an FTA publication that showed other New Starts projects and where they are in terms of 158 development. Chair Steve Schewel added that based on Susan Shruth's presentation, the D-O 159 LRT project was not necessarily competing for funding with other projects. It would receive 160 funding as long as GoTriangle is able to comply with the FTA's requirements. Chair Steve 161 Schewel commented that GoTriangle is on track to comply with the FTA's requirements. 162

163 Chair Steve Schewel and Danny Rogers discussed the implications of there being no 164 funding for new projects in the president's proposed budget. Danny Rogers differentiated state 165 and local funding, and clarified that non-New Starts funding from federal sources would be 166 counted as local funding.

Pam Hemminger commented on the fact that the D-O LRT is one of the few brand new projects to receive funding, and that it gives the project more notoriety in the engineering phase. Danny Rogers commented that it was much more difficult to get the first phase of the project funded than the second in Charlotte's case.

171 Chair Steve Schewel asked if there were any public comments. There were no public172 comments.

173 This item was informational and no further action was required by the MPO Board.

174 **11. New Position for Transit Planning Services for DCHC MPO**

175 Aaron Cain, LPA Staff

176 The Durham and Orange County Transit Plans, adopted in April 2017, include an 177 expectation that each county would create a SWG to develop Annual Transit Work Plans and review quarterly progress reports on the D-O LRT and other transit projects and 178 179 services. The plans envision and fund an administrator to provide services to support the 180 SWGs. Subsequent discussions between the DCHC MPO, GoTriangle, and Triangle J Council of Governments (TJCOG) have determined that the position should be housed within DCHC 181 MPO to serve these functions. In addition to serving the SWGs, the position would also perform 182 transit planning and other duties for the DCHC MPO. 183

184 Ellen Reckhow and Aaron Cain discussed whether the current description of the position

is consistent with the way it was described in the County Transit Plans. Chair Steve Schewel

and Aaron Cain discussed the budget for the positon and whether one person would be able to

187 perform all of the tasks in the current description of the positon. Aaron Cain stated that the

188 DCHC MPO currently has nine and a half positions.

189 Pam Hemminger made a motion to approve the new position of transit planner for the

190 DCHC MPO. Ellen Reckhow seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Penny Rich thanked Aaron Cain for holding an information session for new DCHC MPO
 Board members.

Board members.

193 **12. Resolution in Support of Vision Zero Durham**

194 Terry Bellamy, City of Durham Director of Transportation

195 Terry Bellamy shared the overarching vision, core principals, and a brief history of the

196 Vision Zero program. He also shared crash data for Durham County and discussed the

197 strategies of the Vision Zero Durham program. Terry Bellamy stated that the City of Durham is

198 currently developing complete street strategies and introducing traffic calming measures. Terry

Bellamy shared the upcoming schedule of Vision Zero Durham events and led MPO Board

200 meeting attendees in taking the Vision Zero Durham pledge.

201 Penny Rich and Craig Benedict discussed Leah Shahum's (founder and director of the 202 Vision Zero Network) visit to Chapel Hill and whether Orange County would be adopting a Vision Zero program. Penny Rich received clarification that the resolution would only apply to 203 204 Durham. Terry Bellamy and Ed Harrison discussed the point persons for the Vision Zero Durham program and the educational strategies that would be employed by Vision Zero 205 Durham. Bergen Watterson clarified that Leah Shahum would be visiting the University of North 206 Carolina at Chapel Hill for her work on a board there, and would not be visiting with staff in 207 Chapel Hill. 208 209 Ellen Reckhow made a motion to adopt the Resolution in support of Vision Zero Durham. Don Moffitt seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 210 Chair Steve Schewel commended Terry Bellamy for his work on Vision Zero Durham 211 212 and the recent Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) projects. 13. 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) -- Alternatives Analysis 213 Andy Henry, LPA Staff 214 Andy Henry discussed the next steps in the MTP development process and drew 215 attention to the features of the Alternatives Analysis webpage on the DCHC MPO website. Andy 216 Henry reviewed the maps that are available on the webpage and the schedule for developing, 217 releasing, and adopting the MTP. He also called attention to deadlines that the MPO needs to 218 219 meet in order to avoid triggering new plan requirements or a plan lapse. Andy Henry differentiated the four Alternative Analysis scenarios from each other, and discussed the 220 methodology that was used to create the scenarios. 221 Andy Henry and Chair Steve Schewel discussed the meaning of the term "Locally 222 223 Preferred Alternative." Andy Henry described the Alternative scenarios. Andy Henry and Ellen Reckhow 224 discussed the socioeconomic data that was used for two of the Alternative scenarios. Ellen 225 Reckhow and Andy Henry discussed the possibility of creating scenarios with certain mode 226

227 splits in mind and using other communities that the DCHC MPO wishes to emulate as 228 benchmarks. Andy Henry and Ellen Reckhow discussed the relationship between transit investment and mode choice in the Alternative scenarios. Michael Parker, Ellen Reckhow, and 229 Andy Henry discussed the possibility of creating goal driven scenarios. Andy Henry stated that 230 231 performance measures for goals and targets would be released with the preferred option or draft plan. There was continued discussion of whether and how the draft plan would account for 232 the DCHC MPO's goals and targets. Andy Henry stated that the DCHC MPO is coordinating 233 development of goals, objectives, and targets, with the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning 234 235 Organization (CAMPO).

Andy Henry and Michael Parker discussed whether self-driving cars are being factored into the development of the 2045 MTP. Felix Nwoko commented on the MPO's effort to gather data about connected vehicles.

Andy Henry discussed the performance measures, such as vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and vehicle hours traveled (VHT) that will be used to evaluate the scenarios.

Vice Chair Damon Seils commented that it was important to consider the level at which mode share numbers/targets are considered, as differences in mode share may not be evident if people do not have access to transit investments.

Andy Henry and Michael Parker discussed the factors, such as investments, that 244 account for differences in the Alternative scenarios. They also discussed how land-use 245 246 decisions affect the scenarios. Andy Henry continued to review the performance measures, 247 such as travel isochrones, that would be used to evaluate the different scenarios. There was discussion of whether the D-O LRT and the Durham-Wake Commuter Rail had been factored 248 into the Alternative scenarios. Andy Henry drew attention to a table comparing 2013 travel times 249 with the moderate MTP. There was discussion of the increased travel times in the moderate 250 251 MTP and how travel times may affect mode choice.

Andy Henry also reviewed the congestion maps, and discussed the comparison of

253 Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZs) near the proposed light rail to the overall region. Andy Henry

shared his methods for determining delays and the cost associated with those delays. He also

- explained the color coding on the congestion maps and his method for normalizing the data.
- 256 Andy Henry discussed the next steps in the MTP process.
- Pam Hemminger made a motion to release the 2045 MTP for a 42-day public comment
 period. Ellen Reckhow seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.
- 259 **14. FY2018-27 TIP Update**
- 260 Aaron Cain, LPA Staff

Aaron Cain combined his discussion of the Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP)

update and the SPOT 5.0 update. Agenda item 15 is a combination of agenda items 14 and 15.

263 **15. SPOT 5.0 Update**

Aaron Cain, LPA Staff

Aaron Cain stated that the DCHC MPO recently received its CMAQ award letter, and all of the requested projects were funded at the full amount. Aaron Cain added that a revised draft State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) came out at the end of June 2017. He reviewed the list of major projects in the DCHC MPO area that received funding in the most recent draft STIP.

270 Penny Rich asked for and received clarification about the location of the list of funded

271 projects in the draft STIP. Ed Harrison and Aaron Cain discussed the location of the

Hillsborough Park and Ride that was funded in the draft STIP. There was discussion of whether

all stages of the Duke Belt Line have received funding in the draft STIP. Aaron Cain and Jenn

274 Weaver discussed whether the I-85 widening included the Old NC 86 bridge.

Aaron Cain reviewed reasons for removing the section from US 15-501 to the Durham Freeway of the I-40 managed lane project from SPOT 5.0 consideration. Aaron Cain explained that the project has triggered the corridor cap and therefore prevents the implementation of projects that are a higher priority for the DCHC MPO. In response to a question from Penny 279 Rich, Aaron Cain reviewed the potential timeline for implementing the I-40 managed lane project 280 and how it would affect other proposed projects like the I-40/NC 54 interchange improvements.

Ellen Reckhow commented on the past desire to see managed lanes on I-40 and how 281 those managed lanes might encourage better behaviors such as carpooling, van pooling, and 282 283 bus travel. Aaron Cain shared a few arguments for submitting the project for SPOT consideration, primarily related to waiting for the results of the regional toll study. Aaron Cain 284 stated that the STIP office is willing to work with the DCHC MPO on the programming of the 285 managed lane project so that it does not become a committed project in SPOT 5.0, which would 286 287 give the DCHC MPO another two years to re-evaluate the project. There was discussion of whether the toll study is considering exemptions for other uses of High Occupancy Vehicles 288 (HOV) lanes, such as buses. 289

290 Chair Steve Schewel and Aaron Cain discussed CAMPO's desires about both segments 291 of the project. Vice Chair Damon Seils and Aaron Cain discussed why the project is scoring well 292 in the SPOT process although it is not the highest priority for the DCHC MPO. Aaron Cain, Vice 293 Chair Damon Seils, and Richard Hancock discussed whether there was a guarantee that the 294 managed lane project would not become a committed project.

295 Chair Steve Schewel stated that the DCHC MPO is working with CAMPO on other projects, such as the Wake Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), and emphasized the importance of taking 296 CAMPO's desire on the managed lane projects into consideration. There was continued 297 298 discussion of whether there was a way to be sure that the STIP office would guarantee that the 299 managed lane project would not become a committed project. There was additional discussion of whether the toll study is taking HOV exemptions into consideration. Chair Steve Schewel and 300 Aaron Cain discussed the corridor cap implications of the managed lane project being classified 301 as committed versus developmental. Richard Hancock pointed out that the project will 302 303 automatically be reprioritized in two years if it is left as a developmental project. Richard

Hancock added that toll revenue would not count towards the corridor cap in response to
 comments from Ellen Reckhow.

Chair Steve Schewel reviewed reasons for leaving the Durham portion of the managed 306 lane project in for SPOT 5.0 consideration, and asked Aaron Cain to continue his discussions 307 308 with CAMPO on the matter. There was discussion of whether one or both sections of the project would be left in for SPOT 5.0 consideration. Aaron Cain and Vice Chair Damon Seils discussed 309 the implications of leaving the managed lane project in for SPOT consideration. Ellen Beckmann 310 shared reasons behind the Technical Committee's recommendation to withdraw the project from 311 312 SPOT consideration. Aaron Cain confirmed that the two parts of the managed lane project are severable in response to a question from Michael Parker. Ellen Beckmann clarified that both 313 portions of the project would be studied regardless of whether or not the portion under 314 discussion was removed from SPOT 5.0 consideration. Aaron Cain and Richard Hancock 315 discussed whether the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) study would include both 316 parts of the project, and Richard Hancock stated that it should. Aaron Cain pointed out that the 317 regional toll study is a separate project not tied to the programming of the managed lanes 318 themselves. There was continued discussion of whether the managed lane project should be 319 320 withdrawn from SPOT consideration and then resubmitted for consideration in SPOT 6.0.

Chair Steve Schewel conducted a straw poll to see if there was support for pulling the project. The straw poll indicated that there was support for withdrawing the project from SPOT consideration. Pam Hemminger stated that it should be noted that the project was being pulled because the DCHC MPO has higher priorities, not because the DCHC MPO does not like the project.

Aaron Cain reviewed the conditions that are necessary for modifying projects, primarily the project not being in the committed stage and concurrence from the Divisions, and reviewed the list of projects that will be modified. Aaron Cain reviewed the updated schedule for releasing the draft TIP. Chair Steve Schewel thanked Aaron Cain for including the deletion of the

Blackwell/Mangum grade separation. Aaron Cain reviewed the number of projects that can be submitted for the FY20-29 TIP, noting that the MPO would receive an extra highway project submittal in SPOT 5.0 for deleting an existing highway project.

Aaron Cain discussed Secretary James Trogdon's request that all Divisions and

334 planning organizations collaborate on deciding on alternate criteria for SPOT consideration.

Pam Hemminger asked whether there was a decision to change the freight weighting. Aaron

Cain stated that all parties in a region or division would have to agree to alternate criteria, and

highlighted the lack of freight data for state routes. Aaron Cain stated that there was no

agreement about increasing the safety score for regional projects in Region C. Aaron Cain

defined accessibility and connectivity in response to a question from Ellen Reckhow.

Aaron Cain stated that the MPO Board Chair needed to sign a letter in order to approve

341 the alternate SPOT criteria. Pam Hemminger made a motion to allow the MPO Board Chair to

sign the letter approving the alternate criteria weighting options. Karen Howard seconded the

343 motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Aaron Cain confirmed that the most of the DCHC MPO's modifications were rejected for

345 SPOT 5.0 projects. He discussed reasons for the rejection of the modifications and the next

- 346 steps in light of the rejected modifications.
- 347

REPORTS:

348 8. Report from the DCHC MPO Board Chair

- 349 Steve Schewel, DCHC MPO Board Chair
- 350 There was no report from the DCHC MPO Board Chair.
- 351 9. Report from the DCHC MPO Technical Committee Chair
- 352 Ellen Beckmann, DCHC MPO TC Chair
- 353 There was no report from the TC Chair.

354 **10. Reports from LPA Staff**

- 355 Felix Nwoko, LPA Staff
- 356 There was no report from the LPA Staff.

357 **<u>11. NCDOT Reports:</u>**

Richard Hancock, NCDOT Division 5, provided an update on the Old Chapel Hill Road bicycle and pedestrian project. Ed Harrison and Richard Hancock discussed the proposed closure of Pope Road for 21 days for the project. Richard Hancock shared the detour route that would be used for the Pope Road closure.

Pat Wilson, NCDOT Division 7, provided updates on the Mt. Carmel /Bennet Road roundabout and the Greensboro/Estes roundabout. He added that there was a Doodle Poll going around for a meeting about intersection improvements at the Franklin/Merritt Mill intersection. Tina Moon confirmed that Vice Chair Damon Seils would be added to the poll for the Franklin/Merritt Mil meeting. Pat Wilson confirmed that Division 7 would submit at least two bicycle and pedestrian projects for SPOT 5.0 for Chapel Hill.

Jennifer Britt, NCDOT Division 8, and Pam Hemminger discussed whether a project is currently being considered at Jack Bennet Road. Aaron Cain stated that the staff has considered submitting a modernization of Jack Bennett Road for SPOT prioritization. Chair Steve Schewel asked staff to follow up with Orange County representatives on the issue of Jack Bennett Road.

Julie Bogle, NCDOT Transportation Planning Branch, stated that the NCDOT Board of Transportation adopted the DCHC MPO Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) on August 3, 2017. Julie Bogle also provided updates on ongoing efforts to improve the CTP process, the freight plan, and a strategic transportation plan. She added that a Request for Proposals (RFP) was just released for a state funding plan for all modes and that work will begin on that plan in 2018.

- There was no report from NCDOT Traffic Operations.
- 380

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

381 12. Recent News, Articles, and Updates

- 382
- There were no informational items.

383	ADJOURNMENT:
384	There being no further business before the DCHC MPO Board, the meeting was
385	adjourned at 12:10 p.m.